
Members are reminded to bring 
their Agendas from the Cabinet 
Meeting held on 11 February 2019 
with them to the meeting

Arun District Council
Civic Centre
Maltravers Road
Littlehampton
West Sussex
BN17 5LF

Tel: (01903 737500)
Fax: (01903) 730442
DX: 57406 Littlehampton
Minicom: 01903 732765

e-mail: committees@arun.gov.uk

6 February 2019

SPECIAL COUNCIL MEETING

To all Members of the Full Council

You are summoned to attend a meeting of the ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL to be held on 
Wednesday, 20 February, 2019 at 6.00 pm in the Council Chamber at the Arun Civic 
Centre, Maltravers Road, Littlehampton to transact the business set out below:

Nigel Lynn
Chief Executive

AGENDA

1. Apologies for absence 

2. Declarations of interest 
Members and Officers are invited to make any declarations of pecuniary, 
personal and/or prejudicial interests that they may have in relation to items on this 
agenda, and are reminded that they should re-declare their interest before 
consideration of the item or as soon as the interest becomes apparent.

Members and Officers should make their declaration by stating:

a)  the item they have the interest in
b)  whether it is a pecuniary, personal and/or prejudicial interest
c)  the nature of the interest
d) if it is a pecuniary or prejudicial interest, whether they will be exercising 
their right to speak under Question Time

Public Document Pack



3. Public Question Time 
To receive questions from the public (for a period of up to 15 minutes)

4. Questions from Members with Pecuniary/Prejudicial Interests 
To receive questions from Members with pecuniary/prejudicial interests (for a 
period of up to 15 minutes)

5. Minutes (Pages 1 - 16)
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 
9 January 2019, which are attached.

6. Chairman's Announcements 
To receive such announcements as the Chairman may desire to lay before the 
Council.

7. Urgent Matters 
To deal with business not otherwise specified in the Council summons which, in 
the opinion of the Chairman of the Council (in consultation with the Chief 
Executive), is business of such urgency as to require immediate attention by the 
Council.

8. Budget 2019/20 (Pages 17 - 26)

The Council is asked to consider the Revenue and Capital Budgets for the 
2019/2020 financial year for both the General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account.  

A report from the Group Head of Corporate Support confirming the 
recommendations being made to the Council is attached.  Members will also be 
asked to refer to the recommendations contained within the Minutes of the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 11 February 2019 with regard to the Budget for 
2019/2020, which will have to be circulated separately.

The 2019/2020 Budget was considered at the meeting of the Overview Select 
Committee held on 29 January 2019 and these Minutes can be accessed by 
clicking on http://www.arun.gov.uk/overview-select-committee

Details of the associated statutory resolutions in agreeing the Budget, following 
receipt of the West Sussex County Council and the Sussex Police and Crime 
Commissioner precepts, will be circulated at the meeting.  

http://www.arun.gov.uk/overview-select-committee


This item will be presented using the order below:

(i) Welcome by the Chairman – Councillor Gammon

(ii) Leader of the Council’s Budget Statement – Councillor Mrs 
Gillian Brown will make her Budget Statement and will propose the 
recommendations, including the associated statutory resolutions 
required in agreeing the Budget, which will be circulated at the 
meeting.

To be moved by – Cllr Mrs Brown

(iii) Cllr Wensley to second (may reserve his right to speak)

(iv) Cllr Purchese to respond on behalf of the Liberal Democrat 
Group

(v) Cllr Brooks to respond on behalf of the Independent Group

(vi) Open Debate

(vii) Cllr Wensley to respond as seconder

(viii) Cllr Mrs Brown to respond as proposer

(ix) VOTE REQUIRED

  
 Members are reminded that if they have detailed questions, would they please inform 

the relevant Cabinet Member/Chairman and/or Director in advance of the meeting in 
accordance with the Council Procedure Rules

 Copies of the reports on the recommendations from the Cabinet Meetings have been 
previously circulated to Members and Members are asked to bring their copies with 
them to the meeting.  Further copies are available from the Committee Manager



This page is intentionally left blank



Subject to approval at the next meeting

263

MINUTES
OF A

MEETING OF THE ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
HELD IN THE ARUN CIVIC CENTRE
ON 9 JANUARY 2019 AT 6.00 P.M.

Present:- Councillors Gammon (Chairman), Dillon (Vice-Chairman), 
Ambler, T Bence, Mrs Bence, Bicknell, Blampied, Mrs 
Bower, R Bower, Brooks, Mrs Brown, Buckland, 
Chapman, Charles, Clayden, Cooper, Mrs Daniells, 
Dendle, Dingemans, Edwards, English, Mrs Hall, Mrs 
Harrison-Horn, Haymes, Hitchins, Hughes, Mrs Madeley, 
Mrs Neno, Mrs Oakley, Oliver-Redgate, Mrs Porter, 
Purchese, Reynolds, Miss Rhodes, Tyler, Wells and 
Wensley.   

[Note:  The following Members were absent from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of 
business: Councillors Oliver-Redgate and English - 
Minute 321 (Part); Councillors Wells and Buckland – 
Minute 340 (Part)]. 

Honorary Alderman Squires was also present at the 
meeting.

321. WELCOME

The Chairman welcomed Councillors, Honorary Alderman Squires, 
representatives of the public, press and officers to the Council Meeting. 

322. FORMER COUNCILLOR DENNIS WILDE

The Chairman announced with great sadness that former Councillor 
Dennis Wilde had passed away on 8 December 2018. He confirmed that Mr 
Wilde had served the District as a Councillor from May 1999 until May 2015 
and had fulfilled the role of Chairman of the Council for the Civic year 2011 to 
2012.  He had also chaired a variety of Committees and had represented the 
District Ward of East Preston and Kingston for that time.

Having received a tribute from his fellow Ward Member, Councillor 
Chapman, the Chairman asked Members to join him in sending the Council’s 
thoughts to his family and friends during this difficult time.  

The Council then stood in silence to his memory.

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Subject to approval at the next meeting

264
Full Council – 09.01.19

323. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillors Mrs Ayres, 
Ballard, L Brown, Cates, Elkins, Northeast, Mrs Pendleton, Smith, Mrs 
Stainton, Stanley, Dr Walsh, Warren, Wheal and Wotherspoon and from 
Honorary Aldermen Mrs Goad,  Mrs Morrish, Mrs Olliver and Stinchcombe.

324. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

The Chief Executive declared a Personal and Prejudicial Interest in 
Agenda Item 19 (Chief Executive’s (CEO) Remuneration Committee – 11 
December 2018) in relation to Minutes 304 (Chief Executive’s Remuneration 
for 2018/2019) as this item would be discussing his salary.  The Chief 
Executive confirmed that he would leave the Council Chamber for 
consideration of this matter.

325. QUESTION TIME

The Chairman confirmed that no questions had been submitted.

326. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS WITH PREJUDICIAL/PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS

There were no Questions from Members with prejudicial/pecuniary 
interests.

327. PETITIONS

No Petitions had been received by the Council.

328. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Council Meeting held on 7 November 2018 were 
approved by the Council as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Page 2



Subject to approval at the next meeting

265
Full Council – 09.01.19

 

329. CHAIRMAN’S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman alerted Members to the list of engagements and events 
that had been attended since the last Meeting of the Council held on 7 
November 2018 – these had been emailed to Councillors recently.  

The Chairman then announced that he wished to have noted the 
congratulations of Arun District Council to Mrs Daphne Snowden who had 
been awarded the Order of the British Empire, OBE, in the recent Queen’s 
New Year’s Honours List for her services to charity and the community of 
Littlehampton including fundraising for the Royal British Legion for over 65 
years. Mrs Snowden had also held the Order of St John for many years and 
had also been a charity collector for the RNLI. 

330. URGENT MATTERS

There were no items for this meeting.

331. SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 24 OCTOBER 
2018 AND THE RECONVENED SPECIAL DEVELOPMENT 
CONTROL COMMITTEE – 13 NOVEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Bower, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Special Development Control Committee held on 24 October 
2018 and the reconvened meeting on 13 November 2018.

332. CABINET – 12 NOVEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Mrs Brown, presented the Minutes from the 
Cabinet Meeting held on 12 November 2018.

Councillor Mrs Brown alerted Members to a recommendation at Minute 
239 [Budget Monitoring Report to 30 September 2018] and outlined that this 
covered performance against the approved budget to the end of September 
2018 in relation to the General Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
and Capital.  Councillor Mrs Brown explained that financial performance was 
monitored on a regular basis to ensure that spending was in line with the 
Council’s Policies and that net expenditure was contained within overall 
budget limits.  

Page 3



Subject to approval at the next meeting

266
Full Council – 09.01.19

The variances on budget had been set out in the General Fund 
summary with this showing a favourable variation against expected spend of 
£338k. The deterioration from previous months was mainly due to 
homelessness expenditure on nightly paid accommodation.  In order to 
address projected overspends a supplementary estimate of up to £650k was 
being requested.  Although this was a substantial request, Councillor Mrs 
Brown informed Members that the establishment savings target which had 
been set at £450k was for the current year an additional £176k above target.  
Looking at the HRA, expenditure on supervision and management was 
currently £139k below expectation.  

Councillor Mrs Brown therefore urged Members to support the one 
recommendation that was before Members to consider.  She reconfirmed that 
Recommendation (2) [relating to the Linear Park] in the Officer’s report had 
not clearly confirmed that Cabinet was being asked to note the award of the 
Contract rather than actually awarding it, this was because the decision to 
take the project forward had already been made by the Council at its meeting 
held on 10 January 2018. Recommendation 3 in the report [for Cabinet to 
note the remaining contents of the report in Appendix 1] had also been noted 
by Cabinet on 10 December 2018.  Councillor Mrs Brown then formally 
proposed the recommendation which was then duly seconded by Councillor 
Wensley.

The Council

RESOLVED

That a supplementary estimate of up to £650k (which equates to 
a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £10.76) for Homelessness 
be approved.

333. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 14 NOVEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Bower, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Development Control Committee held on 14 November 2018.

334. AUDIT & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE – 15 NOVEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Chapman, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Audit and Governance Committee held on 15 November 2018.

Page 4



Subject to approval at the next meeting

267
Full Council – 09.01.19

Councillor Chapman alerted Members to a series of recommendations 
at Minute 263 [Treasury Management – Mid-Year Review – 2018/19] and in 
formally proposing the recommendations commended the Council’s Treasury 
Management team for the returns achieved in a particularly difficult economic 
environment.  The recommendations were then seconded by Councillor Mrs 
Oakley.

The Council

RESOLVED – That

(1) the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 
2018/2019 contained in the report be approved; 

(2) the treasury management report for 2018/2019 be noted; 
and

(3) the mid-year treasury activity for the period ended 30 
September 2018, which has generated interest receipts of 
£169,920 (0.97%) for the quarter and £364,203.64 (1.18%) for 
the year to date be noted against a budget of £480,000 (1.14%) 
for the full year.

335. OVERVIEW SELECT COMMITTEE – 20 NOVEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Dingemans, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Overview Select Committee held on 20 November 2018.

336. ENVIRONMENT & LEISURE WORKING GROUP – 27 NOVEMBER 
2018

(Prior to the discussion on this item, Councillor Wells declared his Personal 
Interest in Minute 27 [Events Policy and Procedure 2018 as Chairman of the 
Bognor Regis Business Improvement District (BID)).

The Chairman, Councillor Hitchins, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Environment & Leisure Working Group held on 27 November 
2018.

Page 5



Subject to approval at the next meeting

268
Full Council – 09.01.19

Councillor Wells then asked a question in relation to Minute 26 
[Strategic Vision for the Future of Public Convenience Services in Arun – 
Update] in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13.1 by requesting to 
receive an update on the public convenience programme as it had been 
outlined at the meeting of the Working Group that it was hoped that Phase 1 
and Phase 2 of the works would be fully operational by Christmas.  In 
response, Councillor Hitchins confirmed that although he could not provide 
Councillor Wells with a response now, he would provide him with a written 
update following this meeting.  

Councillor Oppler also asked a question on the same minute in 
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13.1.  His question referred to the 
community toilet scheme in North Street, Wick, and how successful had this 
been.  Councillor Oppler stated that he was asking this question as take up of 
a similar scheme in Bognor Regis had not been very high.  Councillor Hitchins 
outlined that he believed that the take-up of this scheme had been nil but 
promised to double check and report back to Councillor Oppler if the outcome 
proved to be different to the response he had provided.

337. CONSTITUTION WORKING PARTY – 28 NOVEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Mrs Bower, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Constitution Working Party held on 28 November 2018.

Councillor Mrs Bower referred Members to two recommendations at 
Minute 18 [Review of the Protocol on the Call-In of Prosecutions – Part 8 
(Codes and Protocols) which she formally proposed.  The recommendations 
were then seconded by Councillor Wensley.

The Council

RESOLVED – That

(1) Section 5 (Call-In of Prosecutions) of Part 8 (Codes and 
Protocols) be deleted from the Constitution; and

(2) The Group Head of Council Advice & Monitoring Officer 
be authorised to make any further consequential changes to the 
Constitution.

338. SPECIAL OVERVIEW SELECT COMMITTEE – 3 DECEMBER 2018

The Chairman presented the Minutes from the Special Meeting of the 
Overview Select Committee held on 3 December 2018.

Page 6



Subject to approval at the next meeting

269
Full Council – 09.01.19

Councillor Oppler outlined that he wished to ask a question in relation 
to Minute 283 [Leisure Operating Contract – Year Two Report] in accordance 
with Council Procedure Rule 13.1.  Councillor Oppler outlined that his 
question was about the new Littlehampton Wave Leisure Centre and the 
question that had been asked at that meeting regarding solar panels and why 
these had not been installed at the new leisure centre and especially in light of 
the fact that West Sussex County Council (WSCC) was investing heavily in 
solar panels for all of its projects due to huge economic benefits.  Councillor 
Oppler outlined that he wanted to know why Freedom Leisure had not 
followed what appeared to be best practice.  

The Cabinet Member for Community Wellbeing, Councillor Clayden, 
was able to respond.  He explained that the new leisure centre had installed a 
modern air handling system which very successfully allowed hot air to escape 
without the need to use expensive air conditioning.  A combined heat and 
power unit had been included and was set to save the Council money through 
its efficiency.

339. PLANNING POLICY SUB-COMMITTEE – 5 DECEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Bower, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Planning Policy Sub-Committee held on 5 December 2018.

The Chairman referred Members to the first set of recommendations at 
Minute 4 [Arun Local Development Scheme] which he formally proposed.  
These two recommendations were then seconded by Councillor Charles.

The Council

RESOLVED - That

(1) the Local Development Scheme 2018/19, as amended and 
set out at Appendix 1 to the report, be adopted; and

(2) authority be delegated to the Group Head of Planning, in 
consultation with the Chairman and the Planning Portfolio 
Holder, to undertake minor updating and drafting of any 
amendments required to the Local Development Scheme prior to 
publication.

Page 7



Subject to approval at the next meeting

270
Full Council – 09.01.19

Councillor Bower then alerted Members to the next recommendation at 
Minute 5 [Statement of Community Involvement] and he explained that the 
Council was obliged to produce details outlining and confirming how it would 
involve the community in consultation exercises relating to any planning 
matters over the foreseeable future.   Councillor Bower then formally 
proposed the recommendations which were then seconded by Councillor 
Charles.

In discussing this item, some clarification was sought in relation to 
Recommendation (2) in terms of the authority to be delegated to the Group 
Head of Planning.  The recommendation stated that this would be in 
consultation with the Chairman and the Planning Portfolio Holder to agree.  
The question asked was whether this meant the Chairman of the Council or 
the Chairman of the Sub-Committee.  Although, Councillor Bower was able to 
confirm that this was the Chairman of the Sub-Committee, for clarity 
purposes, it was agreed to slightly amend this recommendation to confirm that 
this would be the Chairman of the Sub-Committee. 

The Council, then

RESOLVED – That

(1) the Statement of Community Involvement, attached as 
Appendix 1 to the report, be adopted; and

(2) authority be delegated to the Group Head of Planning, in 
consultation with the Chairman of the Sub-Committee and the 
Planning Portfolio Holder, to agree minor editorial changes 
prior to publication. 

Councillor Oppler then confirmed that he wished to ask some questions 
in relation to Minute 6 [Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Evidence Base 
and Preliminary Draft Charging Schedule] in accordance with Council 
Procedure Rule 13.1.  Councillor Oppler outlined that he had attended the 
Member Briefing on CIL held on 4 December 2018 but still had a great sense 
of unease and had difficulty accepting what the Council could decide was an 
acceptable CIL rate to charge for new development.   It was Councillor 
Oppler’s view that the £15,000 per property charge could be ‘nudged’ up a 
notch further as the Council should be squeezing as much as it could from 
developers for reinvestment back into infrastructure for the community.  He 
asked if the Council, under a new administration, would be able to revisit its 
CIL rates?

Page 8



Subject to approval at the next meeting

271
Full Council – 09.01.19

Councillor Oppler’s question resulted in several Councillors expressing 
views on this matter.  There was some concern that any increase in this levy 
would not just affect developers but future homeowners in the District too.  
Many Councillors outlined that the Briefing had made it very clear about the 
levels that should be set.  The point was made that if CIL charges were 
increased significantly, then properties could become so expensive that this 
would then affect the people the Council was targeting for housing.  The issue 
of CIL charging therefore needed to be critically considered in any future 
debate on CIL charges.

In response, Councillor Bower confirmed that there were CIL 
regulations that the Council had to follow, it could not use CIL regulations to 
control the pace of development.  The Council’s recently adopted Local Plan 
had a five year land supply attached to it which the Council had to maintain, 
otherwise it would be penalised by the Government.  Councillor Bower 
reminded Councillor Oppler that the preliminary draft charging schedule was 
still out for consultation and the responses from this consultation were still to 
be received.    

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Councillor Charles, reconfirmed this 
point and reassured Members that the results of the consultation would be 
reported to the next meeting of the Planning Policy Sub-Committee on 27 
February 2019.  In response to questions asked earlier in this discussion, he 
confirmed that the Council could amend its CIL charging schedule at any time 
as part of a review.

340. CABINET – 10 DECEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Mrs Brown, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of Cabinet held on 10 December 2018.

Councillor Mrs Brown then alerted Members to the first of a series of 
recommendations at Minute 295 [Housing & Homelessness Strategy 
2019/2021] and she emphasised how important this Strategy was as it 
covered all of the primary housing functions that the Council had to undertake 
and how these would be undertaken working with the Council’s partners 
towards a balanced housing market for the District and ensuring the provision 
of safe and healthy homes for Arun’s residents.  Councillor Mrs Brown stated 
that the Strategy had four main objectives which were to increase housing 
supply and improve access to affordable housing; prevent and relieve 
homelessness; to improve the housing conditions across all tenures; and to 
create sustainable communities to meet the needs of all residents.  

Page 9



Subject to approval at the next meeting

Councillor Mrs Brown then formally proposed the recommendations 
which were seconded by Councillor Bence.

272
Full Council – 09.01.19

In debating this item, a question was asked about the Council’s cold 
weather protocol for rough sleepers and why this had only just been activated 
when cold weather had been experienced for at least a week – other Councils 
had put their protocols into force some days ago.  Councillor Mrs Brown was 
also asked what criteria was in place for this and for dealing with the 
homeless and in attempting to reduce the number of rough sleepers.  

Although Councillors spoke in support of the recommendations, some 
urged the Council to urgently put into place more support for ex-veterans 
experiencing problems with PTSD and other mental health issues and 
needing urgent housing support. Councillor Buckland outlined that he had 
been in liaison with Councillor Mrs Goldsmith as Leader of West Sussex 
County Council (WSCC) over its decision to cut housing support grant to 
certain charities and organisations by a sum of £4M and he asked Councillor 
Mrs Brown, as Leader of this Council, if she and the Cabinet Member for 
Residential Services could meet with Councillor Mrs Goldsmith to ensure that 
WSCC would work with its neighbouring Councils to ensure that the right 
housing support would be provided to former armed service personnel, 
especially those with PTSD and other similar problems.  Councillor Buckland 
asked if he could receive confirmation that these discussions would take place 
as ex-veteran rates with these problems were increasing at a rapid rate.   

Councillor Chapman spoke in response and in his position as the 
Council’s appointed Champion on the Armed Forces Community Covenant.  
He confirmed that on 25 November 2018, a paper had been approved by the 
House of Commons which was an initiative review of all services involved in 
supporting veterans.  As a result, a Strategy for veterans and a questionnaire 
had been distributed on 15 December 2018 for all interested parties to take 
part in and to respond to.  Councillor Chapman confirmed that the Council had 
undertaken a lot of work in giving priority to ex-veterans in terms of housing 
allocation and that Arun was a leader in this field in terms of dealing with 
individual cases.  He urged Councillor Buckland, in his position as Vice-
Chairman of the Littlehampton Armed Forces and Veterans Breakfast Club to 
respond to the consultation document.  

The Cabinet Member for Residential Services, Councillor Bence, 
confirmed that he made a request, prior to Christmas, to have the night shelter 
open on extended hours to those that needed it.

Page 10



Subject to approval at the next meeting

273
Full Council – 09.01.19

The Council

RESOLVED – That

(1) The Housing and Homelessness Strategy 2019-2021 and 
its supporting Action Plan be approved; and

(2) Delegated authority be given to the Group Head of 
Residential Services, in conjunction with the Cabinet Member for 
Residential Services, to make appropriate changes to the 
Strategy during its life span.

Councillor Mrs Brown then referred Members to Minute 298 [Temporary 
Appointment to Patching Parish Council] and explained that Cabinet had 
considered this report on 10 December 2018 which sought authority to 
appoint a District Councillor to Patching Parish Council as it had found itself 
inquorate.  Since the Cabinet meeting, further legislation had been identified 
confirming that this decision needed to be taken by Full Council as this could 
not be delegated to the executive of the Council.  

Councillor Mrs Brown therefore referred Members to the report setting 
out the background to this matter and that the Council now needed to confirm 
this appointment.  Councillor Mrs Brown then formally proposed the 
recommendations which were seconded by Councillor Wensley.

The Council

RESOLVED – That

(1) Under Section 91 (1) of the Local Government Act 
1972, Arun District Council, as principal authority under 
the Act, hereby appoints one District Councillor as a 
Parish Councillor with the Patching Parish Council until 
either 7 May 2019, or such earlier date when the 
vacancies at the Parish Council have been filled, by 
election or co-option, so that the Parish council is quorate;

(2) The District Councillor to be appointed be 
Councillor Bicknell; and

(3) The Group Head of Council Advice & Monitoring 
Officer be given authority to instruct Legal Services to 
make the Order and confirm this to the Secretary of State.

Page 11



Subject to approval at the next meeting

274
Full Council – 09.01.19

Finally, Councillor Mrs Brown alerted Members to Minute 299 [Special 
Overview Select Committee – 3 December 2018 – Minute 284 (Local Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme (Working Age) which set out the reasoning behind 
why the Council should consider changing its existing Council Tax Reduction 
Scheme to an income-banded scheme (Option 2) from April 2019.  Councillor 
Mrs Brown formally proposed the recommendation which was then seconded 
by Councillor Bence.

The Council

RESOLVED 

That Option 2 [to change the Council Tax Reduction Scheme to 
an income-banded scheme] be agreed as this Council’s Council 
Tax Reduction Scheme for 2019/2020.

341. CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S (CEO’S) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE – 11 
DECEMBER 2018

(Prior to the consideration of this item, the Chief Executive re-declared his 
Personal and Prejudicial Interest made at the start of the meeting and left the 
Council Chamber.)

In the absence of the Chairman of the Committee (Councillor 
Wotherspoon), Councillor Chapman presented the Minutes from the meeting 
of the Chief Executive’s Remuneration Committee held on 11 December 
2018.

Councillor Chapman referred Members to a recommendation at Minute 
304 [Chief Executive’s Remuneration for 2018/19] and outlined that this had 
been based on the outcome of the Chief Executive’s Appraisal Panel held on 
19 November 2018.  Following this meeting, the Leader of the Council had 
written to the Chief Executive confirming that the Appraisal Panel had 
unanimously agreed that his performance over the last year had achieved a 
final appraisal score of 3 out of 4.  This equated to a 2.5% pay award and 
Councillor Chapman confirmed that he commended this recommendation and 
so formally proposed it especially as there had been cross-party support for it 
as the Committee meeting.  The recommendation was then seconded by 
Councillor Clayden.  

Page 12



Subject to approval at the next meeting

275
Full Council – 09.01.19

In debating this recommendation, Councillor Purchese spoke stating 
that his Group had spoken on this issue on several past occasions.  This was 
because although he had no issue with the appraisal scoring confirmed by the 
Appraisal Panel, he did have an issue in terms of how this was then worked 
into a % pay increase.  Councillor Purchese stated that he accepted that the 
Chief Executive had a personal contract and did not qualify to receive the 
same pay increases that were awarded to NJC staff which were negotiated 
nationally.  The pay increases staff had received over the last 5 years had 
barely met or equalled cost of living increases.  Over several years the % pay 
increase awarded to staff had been significantly lower than that paid to the 
Chief Executive and it was this issue of fairness that he struggled to accept 
and so on this basis, Councillor Purchese confirmed that he could not vote for 
the recommendation.   

Following some further discussion, 

The Council

RESOLVED

That following the Chief Executive’s Appraisal held on 19 
November 2018, the level of performance related pay for 
2018/19 be 2.5%. with this being paid from 3 October 2018.

(During the course of the debate on this matter, Councillor Purchese declared 
a Personal Interest in view of his position as Leader of the Liberal Democrats 
and so a Member of the Chief Executive’s Appraisal Panel.)

342. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE – 12 DECEMBER 2018

The Chairman, Councillor Bower, presented the Minutes from the 
meeting of the Development Control Committee held on 12 December 2018.

343. HOUSING & CUSTOMER SERVICES WORKING GROUP – 13 
DECEMBER 2018

The Vice-Chairman, Councillor Mrs Porter, presented the Minutes from 
the meeting of the Housing & Customer Services Working Group held on 13 
December 2018.

344. LICENSING COMMITTEE – 14 DECEMBER 2018 

Page 13



Subject to approval at the next meeting

In the absence of the Chairman and Vice-Chairman, Councillor Hitchins 
presented the Minutes from the meeting of the Licensing Committee held on 
14 December 2018.

276
Full Council – 09.01.19

345. MOTIONS

No Motions had been submitted for this meeting.

346. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS PURSUANT TO COUNCIL 
PROCEDURE RULE 13

The Chairman confirmed that no questions had been received for this 
meeting. 

347. FORD PARISH COUNCIL NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN REFERENDUM 
– 8 NOVEMBER 2018

The Cabinet Member for Planning, Councillor Charles, presented a 
report which asked the Council to ‘make’ the Ford Neighbourhood 
Development Plan following the referendum held on 8 November 2018.

Councillor Charles formally proposed the recommendation, which was 
seconded by Councillor Bower.

Having commended the Planning Policy team for their work in 
organising the Neighbourhood Plan Referendum, the Council

RESOLVED

That the Council ‘makes’ the Ford Neighbourhood Development 
Plan and it becomes part of the Development Plan for Arun 
District Council.

348. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIPS

There were no change to Committee Memberships reported to this 
meeting.

349. REPRESENTATION ON OUTSIDE BODIES

There were no changes to representation on Outside Bodies reported 
to this meeting.

Page 14



Subject to approval at the next meeting

(The meeting concluded at 19.17 pm)

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM NO.  8      

ARUN DISTRICT COUNCIL
REPORT TO AND DECISION OF SPECIAL COUNCIL

ON 20 FEBRUARY 2019 

PART A :  REPORT
SUBJECT: Arun District Council Budget 2019/20

REPORT AUTHOR:    Alan Peach, Group Head of Corporate Support
DATE: 6 February 2019  
EXTN: 37558  
PORTFOLIO AREA:  Corporate Resources

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: This report considers the recommendations made by Cabinet 
on 11 February 2019 in respect of the Council’s Budget for 2019/20.
The associated statutory resolutions will be circulated at the meeting, following receipt of 
the West Sussex County Council and Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner precepts.
There are additional recommendations associated with the approval of the Council’s tax 
base and NNDR1 for 2019/20 and Special Expenses.
Restrictions on voting under Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992
Members are reminded of the restrictions on voting outlined in Section 106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992. In particular it should be noted that where a Member has 
at least two months arrears of Council Tax he or she must not vote on any matter relating 
directly to the setting of next year’s Council Tax (though they may remain in the meeting 
and may speak).

RECOMMENDATIONS:
Council is recommended to RESOLVE that:

1. The General Fund Revenue Budget as set out in Appendix 1 is approved;
2. Arun District Council’s Band D Council Tax for 2019/20 is set at £181.62, an 

increase of 2.96%;
3. Arun District Council’s Tax Requirement for 2019/20, based on a Band D Council 

Tax of £181.62, is set at £11,129,855 plus parish precepts as demanded, to be 
transferred to the General Fund in accordance with statutory requirements;

4. The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget as set out in Appendix 2 is 
approved; 

5. HRA rents for 2019/20 are set at 1% below the current year’s level in accordance 
with the provisions of the Welfare Reform and Work Act;

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



6. HRA garage rents are increased by 5% to give a standard charge of £11.72 per 
week (excluding VAT), and heating and water/sewerage charges increased on a 
scheme by scheme basis, with a view to balancing costs with income;

7. The Capital Budget as set out in Appendix 3 is approved;
8. The statutory resolutions required by the Council in agreeing its Budget for 

2019/20, as set out in Appendix 4, [which will be circulated at the meeting] are 
approved.

Council is also recommended to :
1. Note that the Group Head of Corporate Support, in consultation with the Deputy 

Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Corporate Support, has 
approved i) a Council Tax base of 61,281 for 2019/20 and ii) the submission of 
the Council’s NNDR1 return (the estimate of the Council’s Business Rate 
income for 2019/20) to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government. The NNDR1 return reflects the changes made in the recent 
Autumn Budget;

2. Note that in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Finance 
(New Parishes) (England) Regulations 2008 a precept has been anticipated for 
the new parish of Barnham and Eastergate and that the amount anticipated is 
equal to that specified in the establishment order. (The new parish of Barnham 
and Eastergate cannot request more than the sum anticipated).

3. Resolve that for 2019/20 any expenses incurred by the Authority in performing 
in part of its area a function performed elsewhere in its area by a Parish/Town 
Council or the Chairman of a Parish Meeting shall not be treated as special 
expenses for the purposes of Section 35 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992.

1.    BACKGROUND:
Arun District Council’s Budget for 2019/20 was considered by the Overview Select 
Committee on 29 January 2019 and by Cabinet on 11 February 2019. 
Members have already received a copy of the Budget but for ease of reference the key 
summary tables (General Fund, Housing Revenue Account and Capital, Asset 
Management and other projects) are attached as Appendices 1, 2 and 3 respectively.
Appendix 1 has been updated to reflect the most up to date information with regard to 
parish precepts.
The required statutory resolutions (Appendix 4) will be circulated at the meeting, following 
receipt of the West Sussex County Council and Sussex Police and Crime Commissioner 
precepts. 
Members are asked to note that as Group Head of Head of Corporate Support I am 
satisfied that the estimates as presented in this Budget are sufficiently robust and that the 
reserve balances proposed for 2019/20 are adequate. However the budgeted level of 
HRA deficit cannot be sustained beyond 2019/20 and this issue will need to be 
addressed in the HRA Business Plan. 

Page 18



2.  PROPOSAL(S):
The Council is requested to consider the report and to approve the recommendations.

3.  OPTIONS:
n/a

4.  CONSULTATION:
Consultation has also been undertaken with Non-Domestic Rate Payers

Has consultation been undertaken with: YES NO
Relevant Town/Parish Council 

Relevant District Ward Councillors 

Other groups/persons (please specify)
Overview Select Committee and Cabinet



5.  ARE THERE ANY IMPLICATIONS IN RELATION TO 
THE FOLLOWING COUNCIL POLICIES:
(Explain in more detail at 6 below)

YES NO

Financial 

Legal 

Human Rights/Equality Impact Assessment 

Community Safety including Section 17 of Crime & 
Disorder Act



Sustainability 

Asset Management/Property/Land 

Technology 

Other (please explain) 

6.  IMPLICATIONS:
The Budget will form the main reference point for financial decisions made in 
2019/2020.

7.  REASON FOR THE DECISION:
To ensure that the Council has a firm financial basis for conducting its business in 
2019/20.

8.  BACKGROUND PAPERS:
Financial Prospects 2018/19 to 2023/24 link: 
http://www1.arun.gov.uk/PublicViewer/Tempfiles/f6a1e3388aa345d.pdf
Correspondence from the MHCLG (Ministry of Housing Communities and Local 
Government) and Department for Work and Pensions.  Budget Working Papers (held 
by Accountancy).

Page 19

http://www1.arun.gov.uk/PublicViewer/Tempfiles/f6a1e3388aa345d.pdf
http://www1.arun.gov.uk/PublicViewer/Tempfiles/f6a1e3388aa345d.pdf


Page 20



General Fund Revenue Budget Summary Appendix 1

Actual
2017-18

£'000
Description

Budget
2018-19

£'000

Budget
2019-20

£'000
Cost of Service

1,181 Community Wellbeing 229 (45)
224 Corporate Support - Direct 244 352
366 Economy 337 316

2,879 Neighbourhood Services 4,821 5,138
669 Planning 752 798

2,233 Residential Services 3,191 2,989
799 Technical Services 337 424

8,565 Management & Support Services 7,937 8,278
0 Vacancy Management (450) (450)

(1,436) Recharges to Housing Revenue Account (1,304) (1,369)

15,480 Total Cost of Service: 16,094 16,431
Corporate Cost

4,061 Parish Precepts 4,271 4,534
145 Other precepts and levies 167 208

(611) Interest & investment income (434) (568)
0 Contingencies / miscellaneous 2,682 383

3,679 Contribution to/(from) earmarked reserves (1,352) (47)
450 Capital expenditure financed from revenue 1,310 2,020

1,812 Pension deficit contributions 1,554 1,564

9,536 Total Corporate Cost: 8,198 8,094
25,016 Total Net Budget Requirement 24,292 24,525

Financed By

(5,991) Retained Business Rates (5,569) (5,357)
(750) Revenue Support Grant (194) 0

(3,677) New Homes Bonus (2,733) (2,664)
(1,284) Other non ringfenced grants (793) (794)

(10,290) Council Tax Income - Arun Excluding Parishes (10,655) (11,130)
(3,954) Council Tax Income - Town & Parish Councils (4,271) (4,534)

(172) Collection Fund deficit/(surplus) (77) (46)

(26,118) Total External Finance: (24,292) (24,525)
(1,102) Transfer (to) / from General Fund Reserve 0 0

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Budget Book 2017-18 1

      Appendix 2

Housing Revenue Account Budget Summary

Actual
2017-18

£'000
Description

Budget
2018-19

£'000

Budget
2019-20

£'000

Expenditure

4,660 Supervision and management 5,058 5,119
4,485 Repairs and maintenance 4,516 4,150
2,861 Financing of capital expenditure 3,047 5,423
5,140 Net loan charges 5,140 5,140

17,146 Total Expenditure: 17,761 19,832

Income

(15,915) Rents (dwellings, garages, hostels, other property) (15,699) (15,889)
(639) Charges for services and facilities (766) (796)

(50) Interest on balance (48) (30)

(16,604) Total Income: (16,513) (16,715)

542 HRA (surplus) / deficit 1,248 3,117

(8,505) Balance brought forward (6,990) (6,075)

(7,963) Balance carried forward (5,742) (2,958)

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



Budget Book 2017-18 1

Appendix 3

Capital, Asset Management and other projects Budget Summary

Actual
2017-18

£'000
Description

Budget
2018-19

£'000

Budget
2019-20

£'000

Capital expenditure by portfolio

6,767 Community Wellbeing 0 0
230 Corporate Support 196 370

0 Economy 0 300
87 Neighbourhood Services 100 350

8,150 Residential Services 18,147 5,423
3,769 Technical Services 1,914 2,500

19,003 Total Expenditure: 20,357 8,943

Summary

12,621 General Fund 2,310 3,520
6,382 Housing Revenue Account 18,047 5,423

19,003 Total Expenditure 20,357 8,943

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	8 Budget 2019/20
	Item 8 - Appendix 1
	Item 8 - Appendix 2
	Item 8 - Appendix 3


